

**ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
CLERMONT COUNTY DOG TRAINING CLUB, INC.**

The undersigned, desiring to form a corporation, not for profit, under the Ohio Non-Profit Corporation Law, does hereby certify:

- FIRST:** The name of the corporation shall be Clermont County Dog Training Club, Inc.
- SECOND:** The place in this state where the principal office of the corporation is to be located is Batavia, Clermont County, Ohio.
- THIRD:** The purposes for which the corporation is formed are:
1. To encourage and promote the training of dogs, mixed-breed as well as pure-bred, and to encourage and promote responsible dog ownership.
 2. To encourage and promote the health, welfare and humane treatment of dogs.
 3. To conduct public classes for the instruction of dog handlers in the methods of training dogs, and
 4. To hold and sponsor public conformation and obedience fun matches, seminars, and demonstrations for community groups, and to encourage sportsmanlike competition to dog shows and obedience trials.
- FOURTH:** This section listed the names of the initial trustees of the corporation, and their addresses.)
- FIFTH:** No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article Third hereof. No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distributing of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on by a corporation exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501 (c) (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law.)
- SIXTH:** Upon the dissolution of the corporation, the Board of Trustees shall, after paying or making provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the corporation, dispose of all of the assets of the corporation, dispose of all assets of the corporation exclusively for the purposes of the corporation in such manner as the Board of Trustees shall determine, including disbursement of the assets to such civic league or organization not organized for profit but operated exclusively for charitable, educational, religious, or scientific purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under Section 501 (c)(4) or Section 501 (c)(3), as the case may be, of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law) as the Board of Trustees shall determine. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the court in which the principal office of the corporation is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said court shall determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Incorporators have signed these Articles of Incorporation on the 20th date of October, 1983.

(Here appears the signatures of the following officers: Sarah B. Ose, Sandra M. Watson, Carolyn V. D'Orta.)

CLERMONT COUNTY DOG TRAINING CLUB, INC. REGULATIONS

ARTICLE I - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1: Responsibilities

CCDTC depends on its members to fulfill its purpose as outlines in the Articles of Incorporation, namely,

- 1.) to encourage and promote the training of purebred and mixed-breed dogs and responsible dog ownership;
- 2.) to encourage and promote the health, welfare and humane treatment of dogs;
- 3.) to conduct public classes for the instruction of dog handlers in dog training methods;
- 4.) to hold and sponsor public competitive events, seminars, and demonstrations for the general public and community groups, and encourage sportsmanlike competition at dog shows and performance events. A member in good standing advances the above purposes.

Section 2: Eligibility

Any adult, eighteen (18) years of age and over, who subscribes to the purposes of the Corporation and who meet the following eligibility prerequisites may be presented for election as a regular member in accordance with Section 4 of Article I of the Regulations. All prerequisites must be met prior to submitting an application for membership.

- 1) applicants must have attended a minimum of two complete training sessions conducted by the Corporation within 12 consecutive months; Applicants must have completed two (2) volunteer hours for the Corporation.
- 2) application must be made not less than fourteen (14) weeks, nor more than one year from the date of the first class attended, (Exception: Persons who have trained for and earned performance titles on one or more dog(s) may apply for membership not less than ten (10) weeks nor more than one year from date of first class attended, provided the training requirements have been met);
- 3) applicants must attend one general membership meeting of the Corporation within one year of the date of the first training session attended (Exception: Those persons unable to attend a membership meeting may petition the board stating their difficulty of attendance);
- 4) only one person per family need complete these eligibility prerequisites for a family membership,
- 5) the applicant must also be willing to serve the Corporation in such capacity as may be necessary for the function of the Corporation, and
- 6) the applicant must not currently be suspended or barred from the privileges of the United Kennel Club.

Types of membership are:

1. Single Membership shall be for 1 adult person.

2. Family Membership

Defined as: at most 2 adults and children under 18 who live under the same roof, one of which must be a parent or legal guardian if the other member(s) is under 18 years old.

After reaching the age of 18, children of a Family Membership must convert to a Single Membership by October 1st or they must apply for membership under the rules of this section.

3. Lifetime Membership is a Louisa Flood Award recipient.

4. Inactive Membership

An Inactive membership shall be available for Members who have experienced some hardship that makes it difficult to maintain an active membership, but do not want to end their membership with the Corporation. Members that meet the requirements listed below:

- 1) Must have experienced some hardship (ill health, loss of dog(s), etc.)
- 2) Applicants for inactive membership must have been an active member for a period of at least five (5) years;
- 3) Member must apply for a change in membership status to the Board for approval.
- 4) An Inactive Member status is granted on a yearly basis and must be reapproved yearly for extenuating circumstances.

An Inactive Membership will cost fifty percent (50%) of the regular dues.

An Inactive Member may receive the newsletter, attend meetings, and volunteer to work at Club functions.

An Inactive Member may not have voting privileges, training privileges, or access to the building unless attending a meeting or Club function.

An Inactive Member must remain an inactive member for a period of one (1) year before they can be reinstated to active membership; unless due to a change in circumstances, they are able to resume active membership, in which case they must petition the Board for reinstatement. All Inactive Members must be approved by the Board for reinstatement to active membership regardless of the period of time that they have been an inactive member.

Section 3: Dues

Persons initially joining the Corporation shall pay one twelfth (1/12) of the annual dues from approval for each month remaining in the membership year. Thereafter, membership dues are payable on October 1st of each year. Dues not paid by the start of the November membership meeting will be considered Lapsed Members

The amounts for memberships are stated in the "Standing Rules".

Membership dues may be changed upon the recommendation of the Board of Trustees and the approval of the members.

Section 4: Election to Membership

Applicants for membership shall file an application for membership with the Chairman of the Membership Committee. The petition shall be endorsed by two (2) members of the Corporation and shall state the dates of classes or dates of Drop-In sessions and number of hours trained by the applicant and date(s) of meeting(s) attended. The application shall also contain an agreement by the applicant to adhere to the purposes set forth in the Articles of Incorporation and to abide by the Regulations of the Corporation.

Prospective members must meet training prerequisites and have attended at least one (1) meeting prior to submitting application. The following would be the applicant timeline: a.) The membership chair submits all applications received by Howler deadline to Howler editor. b.) Howler publishes name, city, state and breed(s) of prospective members to be voted on at next meeting c.) if anyone has comments on a prospective member it must be submitted in writing to the Membership Chair or a Board Member prior to the next scheduled Board meeting. c.) if there are comments that the Board finds valid, the names) will be pulled from that month's ballot. The Board will resolve any contested applicants after an investigation of the issues/allegations. d.) all uncontested prospective members will be voted on at the first scheduled General Membership meeting after Howler Publication. e.) Applicants will be accepted for membership upon a majority vote of those members present and voting at the next regular meeting. Membership dues and service hours are prorated as of the date of admission to Membership to the Corporation. A member who wishes to register for the next class prior to being accepted as members

will follow the regular procedure and f schedule for nonmembers; fees paid for such classes will not be refunded if the applicant is accepted for membership.

Section 5: Termination of Membership:

- a) **Resignation:** Members may resign from the Corporation at any time upon written notice to the Corresponding Secretary.
- b) **Lapsing:** Membership will be considered lapsed and automatically terminated if a member's dues and penalty (if required) remain unpaid by the Annual meeting of that year. The Board of Trustees may grant, upon the request of the member, a thirty (30) to ninety (90) day extension for payment of dues. A member who has not paid his current membership dues shall have no right to vote at meetings until such dues are paid.
- c) **Expulsion:** Membership may be terminated by expulsion as provided in Article VI of the Regulations.

ARTICLE II: MEETINGS

Section 1: Regular Meetings of Members

A regular meeting of the members shall be held bimonthly beginning in January, on the third Tuesday at the CCDTC building unless the Board of Trustees determines that such a meeting is unnecessary.

Section 2: Annual Meeting of Members

The Annual Meeting shall be held in November.

Section 3: Date, Time, and Place of Meetings of the Members; Notice of Meetings

The Board of Trustees shall determine the date, time, and place of the Annual and regular meetings of the members. The Board of Trustees, the President, or the Corresponding Secretary shall give written notice of the Annual Meeting, each regular meeting, and any special meetings of the members.

Section 4: Quorum for Meetings of Members

A quorum for the conducting of business at any annual, regular, or special meeting shall consist of either 20% of the voting members of the Corporation, or 15 members present, whichever is the lesser number.

Section 5: Special Meetings of the Members

Special meetings of the members may be called by twenty percent (20%) of the members, by the Board of Trustees, or by the President. The notice of any special meeting shall state the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called and no other business shall be conducted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice thereof. Notice may be given by telephone or regular mail or as otherwise permitted by law.

Section 6: Regular Meetings of the Board of Trustees

The Board of Trustees shall meet on a regular basis at a date, time, and place as determined by the President. Roll shall be taken. A majority of the Board of Trustees shall constitute a quorum. Any member may attend board meetings. Members or guests may be included on the agenda with prior approval of the presiding officer.

Section 7: Special Meetings of the Board of Trustees

Special meetings of the Board of Trustees may be called by the President or by four (4) of the Board's Members. The Corresponding Secretary shall notify each board member of any special meeting.

Section 8: Parliamentary Authority

Meetings shall be governed by Robert's Revised Rules of Order unless superseded by the Articles and Regulations.

Section 9: Voting at Meetings of Members

Each eligible member (over the age of 18) shall be entitled to one (1) vote , with a maximum of two (2) votes for a Family Membership, at any meetings of the members at which he is present. There shall be no absentee or proxy votes.

ARTICLE III: TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS

Section 1: Eligibility

Members (over the age of 18) in good standing are eligible to stand for election as officers or trustees of the Corporation with the following exceptions:

- a) no more than one member of a household can run or serve on the Board at any one time;
- b) no candidate may be elected to more than one office; and
- c) any officer who wishes to run for higher office in mid-term must resign his current office prior to the election, thus giving the nominating committee the opportunity to find a candidate to stand for election to the vacant office.

Section 2: Board of Trustees and Officers

The number of Trustees of the Corporation shall be sixteen (16) or such other number, not less than three (3), as shall be fixed from time to time at any regular meeting or Annual Meeting of the members.

Five (5) members of the Board of Trustees shall be a President, Vice President, Treasurer, Recording Secretary, and Corresponding Secretary. The Immediate Past President, when applicable, is a member of the Board of Trustees. One - three (1 - 3) shall be elected as Training Director(s). The remaining members of the Board shall be elected as Trustees-at-Large.

Section 3: Duties of the Board of Trustees

The Board of Trustees shall be entrusted with general management of the affairs of the Corporation and shall have power to transact all business of the Corporation, provided however, that the Board of Trustees shall have no authority to incur any liability on behalf of the Corporation not in the ordinary course of business or for approved events in excess of \$500 without approval of the members. Members (and/or Treasurer) must have Board approval for expenditures or reimbursements \$200 to \$499.

Section 4: President

The President shall have such powers and perform such duties as generally pertain to such office, including presiding at all regular and special meetings of the trustees and members. The president shall be a member ex-officio of all committees other than the Nominating Committee. The President shall have such other authority and perform such other duties as determined by the Board of Trustees. The current President will abstain from voting at board and membership meetings, except in the case of ties.

Section 5: Immediate Past President

The Immediate Past President shall have a one (1) year voting position on the Board. If the President is elected for a second term, the position of Immediate Past President will be left vacant for that term.

Section 6: Vice President

The Vice President shall have such powers and perform such duties as generally pertain to such office, including the performance of the duties of the President in his/her absence. The Vice President shall succeed to the office of President for the unexpired term should such a vacancy occur in the office

of President. The Vice President shall be chairman of the Membership Committee and an ex-officio member of all other committees without voting privileges and shall have such authority and perform such other duties as determined by the Board of Trustees. The Vice President will send renewal applications to members by August 1 of each year.

The Vice President shall also keep and maintain a membership book containing the name and address of each member, the date of admission to membership, and the class of membership and shall bring a current membership roster to all membership meetings.

Section 7: Recording Secretary

The Recording Secretary shall have such powers and perform such duties as generally pertain to such office, including keeping the minutes of all meetings of the members and the Board of Trustees and all matters of which a record may be required for the Corporation. The Recording Secretary shall perform such other duties as determined by the Board of Trustees.

Section 8: Corresponding Secretary

The Corresponding Secretary shall have such powers and perform such duties as generally pertain to such office, including the transmittal of correspondence of the Corporation and, at its request, the Board of Trustees.

Section 9: Treasurer

The Treasurer shall have such powers and perform such duties as generally pertain to such office, including the receipt of all funds payable to the Corporation. The Treasurer shall deposit funds of the Corporation in a regular savings account and Certificates of Deposit in the Corporation's name in a banking institution designated by the Board of Trustees, excepting an amount sufficient to meet current estimated expenses which shall be deposited in a checking account in the Corporation's name in a banking institution designated by the Board of Trustees. The Treasurer shall render a report of the items of income and expense at the Annual Meeting and at every regular meeting of the members and the Board. The Treasurer may be bonded in such an amount as the Board of Trustees shall determine.

Section 10: Training Director(s)

The Training Director(s) shall be responsible for chairing the Training Committee and directing the performance of its duties as outlined in Article VII, Section 1.

Section 11: Trustees-at-Large

The Trustees-at-Large shall have such duties and responsibilities as provided by law and, in addition to such duties and responsibilities, shall be responsible for all physical properties of the Corporation and shall report on the condition of such physical properties at the Annual Meeting.

Section 12: No Vacancies

Vacancies in an office or trusteeship shall be filled by a three-fourths ($\frac{3}{4}$) vote of the trustees present at a meeting of the Board of Trustees for the unexpired term, except that in the event of a vacancy in the office of President, the Vice President shall succeed to the office of President and serve the unexpired time. The resulting vacancy in the office of Vice President shall be filled by the Board of Trustees.

Section 13: Removal from Office

A Trustee may be removed from office for cause upon written petition of a member and the vote of three-fourths ($\frac{3}{4}$) of the members at a special meeting called to consider such removal. Three consecutive absences from the Board of Trustees regular or special meetings without justified excuse shall constitute cause for removal. An officer may be removed for cause upon the vote of three-fourths ($\frac{3}{4}$) of the trustees present at a meeting of the Board of Trustees.

Section 14: Resignation

A Trustee may resign from office in writing to the President or his/her designee.

ARTICLE IV: ELECTIONS

Section 1: General

The Officers and Trustees shall be elected by secret written ballot at the annual meeting. Each officer shall also be a trustee and have such powers and perform such duties as generally pertain to such office. In the case of Trustees-at-Large, when more than one vacancy is to be filled, the candidates receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected.

Section 2: Term of Office for President

The term of the President shall be one year, beginning at the close of the Annual Meeting.

Section 3: Term of Office of Certain Officers

The term of the Vice President, Recording Secretary, and Treasurer shall be two years, beginning at the close of the Annual Meeting in each odd-numbered year.

Section 4: Term of Office of Remaining Officers

The term of the Corresponding Secretary, and Training Director(s) shall be two years, beginning at the close of the Annual Meeting in each even-numbered year.

Section 5: Term of Office of Trustees-at-Large

The Trustees-at-Large shall be elected for terms of two years. A simple majority shall be elected in odd-number years and a simple minority shall be elected in even-number years unless there is an even number of Trustees, in which case half shall be elected each year.

Section 6: Written Notice of Candidates

Written notice of candidates for election shall be given to the membership at least two weeks before the election takes place.

Section 7: Nominating Committee

A nominating committee consisting of three members, not more than one of them being a member of the Board of Trustees, shall be appointed by the Board. The Nominating Committee shall notify the Membership of the slate of candidates for all offices, by publication or mailed to members at least 10 days prior to the September meeting. Further nominations for trustees and officers may be made from the floor at this meeting, at which time all nominations are closed. If the proposed candidate nominated from the floor is not in attendance at this meeting, his/her proposer shall present to the Recording Secretary a written statement from the proposed candidate signifying his/her willingness to be a candidate.

Section 8: Installation of Officers

The following pledge shall be repeated by all elected officers at the Annual Meeting. It shall be administered by the presiding officer:

“I (give name) do hereby pledge myself to faithfully perform the duties of the office to which I have been elected to the best of my ability and for the benefit and honor of the Clermont County Dog Training Club, Inc.”

ARTICLE V: FISCAL YEAR AND ANNUAL AUDIT

Section 1:

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on January 1st and end on December 31st.

Section 2:

The Board of Trustees shall ensure an Annual Audit is conducted and a receive a report on the financial condition of the Corporation at the end of each fiscal year. The annual audit findings will be presented to the Board at the February Board Meeting and financial data presented to the members at the March Meeting.

ARTICLE VI: EXPULSION AND DISCIPLINE

Section 1: Petition for Expulsion

Any member may submit a petition for the expulsion of another member for cause. A written petition with specifications must be filed in duplicate with the Corresponding Secretary, together with a deposit of Twenty-five Dollars (\$25) which shall be forfeited if such petition is not sustained by the Board of Trustees following a meeting of the Board at which a hearing will be held. The Corresponding Secretary shall promptly send one copy of the petition to the member who is the subject of such petition by registered mail.

Cause shall include, but not be limited to, unsportsmanlike conduct at classes, dog shows, or other public functions related to the purposes of the Corporation, the use of severe or cruel treatment of any dog, and any other conduct inconsistent with the purposes of the Corporation.

Section 2: Board Hearing

If in the opinion of the Board of Trustees the petition is sustainable, after hearing all the evidence and testimony presented by both parties, the majority of the Board of Trustees present at the meeting (other than the petitioner or such member who is subject of such petition in the event if either of them is a trustee) may suspend the member from all privileges of the Corporation for not more than six (6) months from the date of the hearing. The Board may also recommend to the membership that the penalty be expulsion. In such case, the suspension shall not restrict the defendant's right to appear before his/her fellow members at the meeting of members provided in Section 3 of Article VI. Immediately after the Board has reached a decision, its findings shall be put in written form and filed with the Corresponding Secretary. The Corresponding Secretary shall notify each of the parties of the Board's decision and recommendation, if any.

Section 3: Expulsion

Expulsion of a member from the Corporation may be accomplished only at a meeting of the members following a Board hearing and upon the Board's recommendation as provided in Section 2 of this Article VI. Such meeting may be a regular or special meeting of the members and shall be held not later than sixty (60) days but not earlier than thirty (30) days after the date of the Board's recommendation of expulsion. The member who is the subject of a petition of expulsion shall have the privilege of appearing in his/her own behalf, though no evidence or other testimony shall be taken at this meeting. The President shall read the charges and the Board's findings and invite such member, if present, to speak in his/her behalf if requested. The members shall then vote by secret ballot on the proposed expulsion. A two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members present at the meeting is required for expulsion. The failure of the members to expel a member in accordance with this section shall not affect any Board suspension of such member.

Section 4: Suspension by United Kennel Club

Any member who is suspended or barred from privileges of the United Kennel Club shall be automatically suspended or barred from the privileges of Membership in the Corporation for a like period of time.

ARTICLE VII: COMMITTEES

Section 1: Creation and Appointment

Standing or other committees may be created by the Board of Trustees. Members of standing or other committees are appointed and may be removed with or without cause by the Board of Trustees. The President shall appoint one member of the standing committee or other committees to serve as chairman thereof. Each person on a standing committee or other committee shall be a member of the Corporation.

A list of Committees and their descriptions are located in the Standing Rules.

Section 2: Records

Each committee shall maintain minutes of its meetings and a record of its other activities. The minutes and other records shall be given to the chairman of the succeeding committee upon the expiration of the term of the retiring committee.

ARTICLE VIII: TRAINING FEES

Section 1: Change

Training fees may be changed upon recommendation of the Board of Trustees and the vote of the members at a regular meeting or special meeting.

Section 2: Refunds

Refunds of training fees may be made in special cases by the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE IX: AMENDMENTS

Amendments to the Articles of Incorporation or the Regulations may be proposed by the Board of Trustees or by written petition addressed to the Corresponding Secretary and signed by twenty percent (20%) of the members. Amendments proposed by such petition shall be promptly considered by the Board of Trustees and must be submitted to the members with recommendations of the Board, if any, by the Corresponding Secretary for a vote within three months of the date when the petition was received by the Corresponding Secretary.

Proposed amendments will be published in the club newsletter or mailed to the members at least 10 days prior to the next Regular Membership Meeting, where there will be a discussion and a vote.

ARTICLE X: DISSOLUTION

The Club may be dissolved at any time by the vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the members present at a special meeting called for such a purpose.

ARTICLE XI: RULES FOR LICENSED EVENTS

All licensed events sponsored by the Corporation will be run in accordance with the rules, policies, and procedures from which the license was granted.

ARTICLE XII: ORDER OF BUSINESS

At meetings of the corporation, the order of business so far as the character and nature of the meetings may permit, shall be as follows:

1. Roll call or sign-in
2. Minutes of the last meeting (unless mailed or distributed previously to members)
3. Report of the Board of Trustees
4. Report of the Secretaries
5. Report of the Treasurer
6. Report of the Audit
7. Report of the Trustees-at-large
8. Report of the committees as necessary
9. Election of new members
10. Unfinished Business
11. New Business
12. Adjournment

CLERMONT COUNTY DOG TRAINING CLUB, INC. STANDING RULES

Training and registration

Each member shall register individually for training classes and comply with registration guidelines.

Classes offered (general description, class content and size) will be determined by the current training director(s) and the training committee. These classes will be published in CCDTC class schedules, brochures and on the CCDTC website.

Training devices

- CCDTC commonly used training devices include: flat collar (buckle collar), slip collar (“choke collar”), and limited slip collar (martingale collar). Other training devices shall be considered for use under appropriate conditions.
- The use of training devices will be determined by an experienced instructor(lead instructor for minimum of 2 complete class sessions); and newer instructors will seek advice from the Training Director/s and/or member of the Training Committee and/or experienced instructor. Disputes concerning selection and use of training devices shall be brought to the Training Committee. Any unresolved disputes will be settled by a vote of the membership.
- The Club member or members in charge of any club event have the authority to approach and/or excuse anyone from that event when training methods or general deportment violates club policies, including but not limited to misuse of equipment.

Harsh training methods

- Harsh training methods are defined as any method that might cause injury to an animal, including but not limited to kicking, hanging, or striking with unnecessary force and/or nonphysical abuse, i.e. screaming, lack of emotional control, etc.

Non-members may be banned permanently from all Club events. Club Regulations, Article VI: Expulsion and Discipline applies to members.

Dog Aggression:

Dog aggression incidents in and around the CCDTC building will be reported to the training director and/or training committee. The TD and TC are authorized to create and implement a solution to each incident. Dog aggression incidents at any other club sponsored event will be reported to the club member in charge of the event. That club member is authorized to resolve the incident including excusing the dog(s) from the event. Any disputes may be presented to the board of directors, and if necessary then the membership at large, for review.

Immunization & vaccination records (Provided for Club Records)

- All members shall certify on their application and on the renewal form that their dog(s) is (are) in good health and appropriately immunized

Membership status change

If a change occurs in membership status (i.e., if an individual membership would like a family membership), the member will pay the additional dues and applicable training fees to the Treasurer and will notify the Class Registrar of the change when registering for training.

Membership Dues:

Membership Fees shall be determined by the Board and approved by the membership.

- Lifetime Membership-No dues

- Seniors (those persons 60 or over), receive a ten percent (10%) discount on membership dues.

Hours of Service:

Each Adult member must contribute 16 hours of service to the Corporation per year (A Family membership of 2 adults equates to 22 hours of service). If the service requirement is not met, then a penalty per hour not worked in an amount determined by the Board and approved by the membership will be added to the renewal dues. Service hours will be prorated for new members at a rate of 1 hour per month.

Clarification:

Single membership = 16 hours

Family membership (1 adult + children) = 16 hours

Family membership (2 adults + children) = 22 hours

Inactive/Lifetime = 0 hours

Miscellaneous

- Members who would like to teach a class or change their teaching assignment must contact the level head or the Training Director(s).
- Bitches in season are not permitted in the CCDTC training building; exception would be made for conformation events only. Handlers should be encouraged to attend without the dog.
- All dogs in and around the CCDTC building must be under control at all times. Dogs in or around the building that are not actively participating in a training class, or in a ring training, must be on a leash with a handler or confined to a crate.
- Minor Children (under the age of 18) in and around the CCDTC building must be supervised by an adult who agrees to be responsible for their behavior and safety at all times. Secretary's report of general meetings shall be typed and included in the next newsletter. Board meeting minutes will be made available to the members at each membership meeting.
- CCDTC principle office is the current training facility.
- Certificates of appreciation will be given to all outgoing members of the Board of Trustees at the end of their term in office.
- CCDTC equipment shall not be borrowed, but may be rented. Request for rental of equipment and signed agreement shall be required.

Members may have up to 2 guests per day at the training building during non-class "free-ring" time. Guest(s) shall sign release form and pay a fees, to be determined by the Board and approved by the membership, to train 1 dog or to train multiple dogs. Guests shall relinquish ring space to a CCDTC member.

- CCDTC club colors are cranberry and silver.
- There is a refundable deposit of twenty-five dollar (\$25) for a key to the training facility. Keys are only available for adults and who are full members of CCDTC.

Changes to the Standing Rules

Proposed changes to the Standing Rules will be published in the club newsletter or mailed to members at least 10 days prior to regular meeting in which they will be discussed and voted.

COMMITTEES AND JOB DESCRIPTIONS

The chairman of each committee shall have primary responsibility for supervising and carrying out the work of that committee. The assistant chairman shall be involved as much as possible in these tasks and may be appointed to chair the committee the following year.

Training Committee

There shall be a standing Training Committee consisting of the Training Director(s), and members selected by the current Training Director(s) who shall represent each level and/or venue of training classes offered by the Corporation. The Training Committee shall have responsibility, subject to approval of the Board of Trustees, of setting class schedules, recruiting instructors, and selecting the registrar. The number of Training Director(s) shall be determined by the Board of Directors. The Training Committee shall hold regular meetings for the purpose of sharing information and views, determining the classes which will be offered and the teaching goals in each class.

Training Director: The number of Training Director(s) shall be determined by the Board of Directors. The training director(s) heads the training committee and is responsible for selecting the venue level heads (conformation, obedience, rally, agility). The venue level heads will make up the core of the training committee. Assistants for each venue will be chosen by the level heads and may also be a part of the training committee if approved by the Training Director(s). Class registrar is also chosen by the Training Director(s) and is a member of the training committee.

The training director (or directors) will be ultimately responsible for setting class schedules and for overseeing class content. The training director(s) will be consulted about the use of alternative training devices and methods. It will be the decision of the training director(s) to allow or disallow the use of same at CCDTC classes. The training director(s) may allow specific decisions on training devices or methods to be decided by level heads or individual instructors on a case by case basis.

Class registrar

Receives applications for training classes, places applicants in appropriate class (or on waiting list if class is full) notifies class members by phone, email or mail to confirm registration, checks nonmember health certificates, notifies instructors of class list, and delivers class fees received to club treasurer.

Publicity

This committee will have the responsibility of maintaining and disseminating information on the club. Included in the jobs are to advertise club classes and activities by keeping printed information available at veterinary offices, grooming shops, etc. and by placing press releases and advertisements in newspapers as necessary. Additional duties may be added as needed.

Historian

Keeps record of the history and activities of the club, including newspaper articles, pictures, and other written items of interest to the club.

Building

Maintains and safeguards the physical properties of the club, i.e., mats, gates, jumps, etc., and reports on the condition of such physical properties and present an itemized inventory, at the Annual Meeting. Under its direction are: scheduling the cleaning crews, distributing keys (and maintain the records for same), reporting building structure issues to the President to pass on to the landlord.

Nominating Committee

Presents a slate of candidates at the membership meeting preceding the Annual Meeting for the offices that have terms that expire on the date of the Annual Meeting, after affirming the willingness of each candidate to run for office. Also receives the applications of candidates for Training Director(s) prior to the July membership meeting. (see also: Regulations Article IV, Section 7)

Events Committee

There shall be a standing Events Committee consisting of the Events Committee Chair(s), and members selected by the current Events Committee Chair(s) who shall represent each venue of events offered by the Corporation. The Events Committee shall have responsibility, subject to approval of the Board of Trustees, managing the schedule of events at the training facility, of evaluating proposed events, helping the chair of the events when they need help, and help to insure that the events make a profit and/or meet the goals of the Corporation. The Events Committee shall hold regular meetings. The Events Committee Chair will be the point of contact for all building rentals.

All licensed events sponsored by the Corporation will be run in accordance with the rules, policies, and procedures from which the license was granted.

Store

The store Manager will maintain Inventory, place orders, stock and price merchandise. Schedule Store open times to coordinate with first weeks of classes, events, and meetings. Train volunteer workers in merchandise use and how to fit dogs for merchandise. Maintain books and provide treasurer with records and funds received in a regular and timely manner

Awards

Keeps records of titles earned by club members, orders appropriate awards for recognition of such titles, and orders and presents the club's special awards to members.

Newsletter

Publishes a periodic newsletter containing notification of club meetings and events, minutes of previous meetings, schedules of classes, and articles and announcements of interest to club members.

Membership Committee

Receives applications for membership from trainees, provides pertinent information about members' responsibilities to the club, and secures sponsors for prospective members. The Vice-President is chairman and sends membership renewal applications according to the bylaws.

Parliamentarian

The Parliamentarian shall have such powers and perform such duties to such office, including supervising both general and Board Meetings to assure the meeting is conducted by Robert's Rules of Order. The Parliamentarian shall have no vote at a Board Meeting.

By-Laws

Reviews CCDTC Bylaws and makes recommendations for additions, deletions, and up-dates to the Board of Trustees.

Audit Committee

Review of the clubs financial records is conducted annually.

CCDTC AWARDS

Title Awards

A plaque with a set of engraved hanging plates) may be purchased by a member for titles earned by their dog(s).

Members must notify the Awards Committee chairman when they earn a title. Award cards are available at meetings and training classes. Include owner's name, dog's registered and/or call name, title earned, date completed, and scores earned (obedience titles) or placements earned (conformation titles). Send form to the current Awards Chairperson. It is the responsibility of each member to report awards and

show locations to the Awards Committee by the January meeting for the previous year. Reports turned in after this date will not be accepted.

All reports submitted to the Awards Committee must be from trials and shows. Scores and awards from practice matches or Show-N-Go's are not to be submitted as they are not included in these awards.

Club Awards

Top Obedience Dog Award is awarded each year the CCDTC dog that has had the most successful year competing in obedience trials.

Dogs are awarded points for scores earned (Front & Finish's "First and Foremost" point system), class placements, High in Trial & High Combined points based on a minimum award of points and the # of dogs competing (not just entered).

1.) Score – Points

$$200 = 8$$

$$198-199.5 = 7$$

$$195-197.5 = 6$$

$$190-194.5 = 5$$

$$185-189.5 = 4$$

$$180-184.5 = 3$$

$$175-179.5 = 2$$

$$170-174.5 = 1$$

2.) Placing: 4 points for 1st, 3 points for 2nd, 2 points for 3rd, 1 point for 4th plus 1 point for every 10 dogs competing in the class

3.) High-In-Trial points 5 points plus 1 pt. for every 10 dogs competing, # of dogs in regular classes.

4.) High Combined points. 5 points and 1 point for every 10 dogs competing in UB, UA and OB

EXAMPLES

Dog that qualifies (at an all-breed trial) with a 197, gets 1st place in there class (25 dogs), and HIT (150 dogs competing) $6+4+2+5+15=32$ points

Dog that qualifies in OB, UB with a 193/180, gets 3 place in OB (27 dogs competing) and doesn't place in UB (25 dogs competing in UB and 10 dogs competing in UA) and gets High Combined gets $5+3+2+2+5+6=23$ points

The club will award a rosette to the Top Obedience Dog, and certificates to the top five obedience dogs, based on the information submitted for that dog.

Top Agility Dog Award is awarded each year to the CCDTC dog that has had the most successful year competing in agility trials.

Dogs are awarded points for each qualifying leg in any venue (i.e., AKC, UKC, NADAC, CPE, USDAA, Teacup, etc.) earned during the calendar year. We award 1 point per leg at the "novice" level, 2 points per leg at the "open" level, 3 points per leg at the "excellent" level, and 5 points per leg at the "master" level. We also award 2 bonus points for achieving a title, bonus points for placing in a class (4 points for 1st, 3 points for 2nd, 2 points for 3rd, 1 point for 4th), 2 bonus points for a double Q in AKC Excellent B classes, and 10 bonus points for achieving the highest level in a venue. A given dog may have multiple handlers running the dog throughout the year.

To be considered for the award, owners/handlers must submit their scores for the year to the awards committee by the published deadline. The club will award a rosette to the Top Agility Dog, and certificates to the top five agility dogs, based on the information submitted for that dog.

Top Rally Dog Award is awarded each year to recognize the CCDTC dog that has had the most successful year competing in Rally trials.

Dogs are awarded points for each qualifying leg in any venue (i.e. AKC, ADPT).

- 1.) Points from AKC Novice and APDT Level 1 are awarded as 1 point for each point over 170 or 70 depending on the venue (with a maximum of 30 points).
- 2.) Points from AKC Advanced and APDT Level 2 are multiplied by 2 (maximum of 60 points).
- 3.) Points from AKC Excellent and APDT Level 3 are multiplied by 3 (maximum of 90 points).

Example:

APDT Level 1 179 = 9 points

APDT Level 2 203 = 66 points

AKC Excellent 86 = 78 points

The club will award a rosette to the Top Rally Dog, and certificates to the top five Rally dogs, based on the information submitted for that dog.

Top Conformation Dog Award is given each year to recognize the dog with the most Best of Breed and/or Group placements according to the CCDTC point system.

Top Conformation Dog point system

The CCDTC award for top conformation dog (one puppy award and one adult dog award) shall be determined as follows. Points earned per show are cumulative: see example.

- 1) Winner's Dog and Winner's Bitch receive the number of points awarded towards the conformation title as per AKC schedule of points.
- 2) As per AKC regulations, the dog (here meaning either sex) receiving Best of Winners award will get the same number of points as Winner's Dog and Winner's Bitch, whichever is higher.
- 3) Dogs entered in Best of Breed class only and awarded Best of Breed will receive the same number of points as Best of Winners. Winner's Dog or Winner's Bitch winning Best of Breed award will have point total from #1 above, adjusted as necessary to reflect an award taken over a greater number of dogs.
- 4) Dogs winning Best of Opposite Sex will receive the same number of points as Best of Winners.
- 5) Dogs placing first, second, third, or fourth in Group will receive four, three, two, and one point respectively.
- 6) Dogs receiving Best in Show award receive 10 points.

Example: A dog that is a champion of record and entered in the Best of Breed class receives the Best of Breed award. In the same breed and show, Winner's Dog received two points and Winner's Bitch received three points towards a conformation title. The Best of Breed award winner therefore receives three points. The same dog goes on to win first in Group (four points) and best in Show (10 points). This dog's total points towards the Top Conformation Dog Award for this show is 17 points.

The Louisa Flood Award is presented whenever deemed appropriate by the Board to honor a member with a record of outstanding service to the club. Candidates are nominated by the membership and voted on by the Board of Trustees to preserve the element of surprise.

The Member of the Year Award is awarded annually for members with a record of outstanding service to the club for that year. Up to three (3) members may receive this award in a given year. Candidates are nominated by the membership and voted on by a committee of six (6) members.

Member Sponsored Awards are Awards and recognitions which are sponsored by a Member or Members of CCDTC, will be the responsibility of the sponsor(s) to pay for and maintain such awards. Rules and requirements for Member sponsored awards will be made available to the membership.